
1 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

November 9, 2015 

MINUTES:  THE INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION, Town of Hamden, held a Regular Meeting on 
Wednesday, November 4, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Thornton Wilder Hall, Miller Memorial Library Complex, 2901 
Dixwell Avenue, Hamden, CT and the following items were reviewed:   

 
Commissioners in attendance:      Joan Lakin, Chairperson 

  Kirk Shadle   

 Kirsten Jensen 

 Amanda Kallenbach 
 Mike Stone, left @ 8:48 p.m. 

  Dan Liston 

 Mike Milazzo    
 

   

Staff in attendance: Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner  

 Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney  
 Tom Vocelli, IW Enforcement Officer                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 Stacy Shellard, Commission Clerk 

 
Ms. Lakin called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  Mr. Shadle called the roll and there was a quorum.  Ms. Lakin 

introduced the Commission and Staff.    

 

I.  Regular Meeting: 

 

 1)  New Applications 

 
a.  15-1214 2040 Dixwell Ave, Conversion of a grass baseball field into a synthetic               

 turf field, Hamden Board of Education, Applicant 

 
Mr. Kevin Fuselier, Landscape Architect, addressed the Commission and stated that the proposed plan is for the 

baseball field at Hamden High School to be changed from a grass field to a synthetic turf field.  

 
Mr. Chris Hulk, Civil Engineer, addressed the Commission and reviewed an aerial photo of the regulated area located 

within the vicinity of the proposed project.  Mr. Hulk reviewed the drainage channel of the existing culvert.  He noted 

that the closest watercourse is 25 feet away from the existing baseball field which drains from the west to the east.  He 

reviewed the proposed project and stated that the existing fence is located on State property.  Mr. Hulk reviewed the 
limits of the State’s right of way and noted that the existing limits will be maintained.  The proposed project moves the 

field away from the watercourse and any water drainage will discharge into the existing storm water drainage system.  

Mr. Hulk reviewed the proposed Stormwater Management Plan which shows that there will be no increase of water 
runoff from the field.  It will be a multi-use field and soccer, field-hockey, softball and baseball will be played on it.  

Currently, there is a limited amount of fields available for school use.  In the springtime the games have to be 

rescheduled when the fields are too soggy to be safely used.   

 



2 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Mr. Fuselier stated that the purpose of the proposed project is to allow the fields to be used full time.  The existing 

baseball field soil has become compacted over the years and it has poor drainage.  The proposed plan is to convert the 
area into three multi-use fields.  The existing footprint will remain the same and the proposed plan will increase the 

size of the grandstands, create new dugouts and install a new fence.   

 

Ms. Kallenbach stated that the proposed project is to replace the existing field with synthetic astro turf.  She is 
concerned that the use of the astro turf would create an urban heat island and a possible loss of the existing habitat.  

She asked what the plan includes that will mitigate the heat and prevent a loss of habitat.  She asked if trees and shrubs 

will be planted.   Mr. Fuselier replied that the proposed plan will match the existing footprint.  He does not feel that the 
proposed plan will affect the habitat because there are no trees on the existing field.  There is not a planting plan for the 

proposed field because it will be a synthetic material.  The heat from the field is known as synthetic heat rise.  The 

Town is aware of the heat that could be produced from the synthetic material because it is being used on the new field 
at the track area.  The Town knows when it is safe to use the fields and how to play sports on them.   

 

Ms. Kallenbach made the motion to table this item for site inspection.  Mr. Liston seconded the motion.  The motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

 2)  Pending Applications 

       
                 a.  15-1210  560 Newhall Street-construct multi-family dwelling units  

                 Mutual Housing Association of SC CT, Inc, Applicant                   

 
Mr. John Schmitz, Civil Engineer, addressed the Commission and stated that at the October 7, 2015 meeting it was 

questioned who owns Mill Rock Road Extension.  It has been determined that the Town owns the property and that the 

road must be formally accepted as a town road.  Mr. Schmitz stated that the Town Engineer’s comments have been 

addressed.  He reviewed the revised Stormwater Drainage Plan.  The Town Engineer’s comments dated October 6, 

2015 requested that at a minimum one benchmark be added to the Grading and Drainage Plan sheets.  Mr. Schmitz 

explained that the RWA is under a consent order by the DEEP to remediate the site and clean the contamination.  Plans 

were submitted to show the plantings in the buffer area of the wetlands.  Mr. Schmitz reviewed the Improvement 

Location Survey (marked as Exhibit 2).   

Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, stated that an application is before the Planning & Zoning Commission.  The 

Planning & Zoning Commission asked if a parking lot could be relocated and if so, would it affect the wetlands.  He 

asked Mr. Schmitz to explain where the parking lot would be placed and if it would affect the wetlands.  

Mr. Schmitz explained that at the Planning & Zoning Commission neighbors had voiced their concerns about the site 

plans and issues with the proximity of a parking lot to their properties located on Morse Street.  The Commission 

asked if the parking lot could be moved to allow for a larger buffer and add more screening to the proposed plans.  Mr. 

Schmitz said that the geometry of the parking lot can be changed and still maintain the same number of parking spaces.  

The change would not result in any additional impervious surface.  He reviewed changes that could be made to the 

proposed parking area.  The Planning & Zoning Commission also asked that another meeting be held for the residents 

in the neighborhood and this is currently being coordinated with the Town and the residents of the neighborhood.  The 

plans have not been revised yet, but the parking area will be revised so that it is 200 feet from the abutting properties.  

Mr. Schmitz reviewed the location of the wetlands relative to the proposed parking lot changes.   

Ms. Lakin asked if the Commission can entertain changes that have not been done yet.  Mr. Lee replied that the 

Commission must address the proposed plans that are before it.  The applicant will go before the Planning & Zoning 

Commission to present the proposed changes to the parking area configuration.  If the proposed changes to the parking 

area are approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission and  if it is the consensus of  the Wetlands Commission, a 



3 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

modified plan can be presented to the Wetlands Enforcement Officer for him to determine if the plan can be approved 

as a de minimis ruling or if a new application or amendment needs to be submitted.    

Mr. Dan Liston made the motion to approve Application 15-1214 and empower Mr. Tom Vocelli, Wetlands 

Enforcement Officer, to make a determination as to whether the change in the parking lot is a de minimis ruling.  If 

the change is determined not to be a de minimis the applicant must come back to the Inland Wetland Commission 

with a new application.  Mr. Stone seconded the motion.   

Mr. Shadle asked that the motion be amended to add the following clarification and review guidelines to the motion:   

1) Any changes to the impervious surface 2) any drainage changes that may occur 3) any changes in the plantings 

that will occur within the 200 foot upland review area.   

Mr. Liston accepted the amendment.   

Mr. Shadle stated that the amendment provides Mr. Vocelli with objective guidelines to make a decision.  Mr. Vocelli 

stated that there is merit to including items in the motion that help him determine if changes to the plan are of a de 

minimis nature.   

Mr. Stone accepted the amendment to the motion.   

Mr. Liston asked Mr. Schmitz if he is anticipating any changes that were addressed by Mr. Shadle.  Mr. Schmitz 

replied no.   

Mr. Liston, Mr. Shadle, Ms. Jensen, Mr. Stone and Mr. Milazzo voted in favor of the motion.  Ms Kallenbach 

abstained.  Therefore, the motion passed 5-0-1.                           

             b.  15-1211  303 & 311 Highland Avenue, 124, 128 & 132 Edgewood Avenue                          

     Consolidation of 5 lots into 2 lots & construct 2 single-family homes 

                                       James Wrzosek, Applicant 
              

Mr. James DiMeo, Civil Engineer, addressed the Commission and reviewed the proposed plan for two houses.  He 

reviewed the existing five lots and noted that the lot lines will be revised to create two conforming lots that will be 

accessed from Edgewood Avenue and Highland Avenue.   Mr. DiMeo stated that he received the comments dated 

November 2, 2015 from the Town Engineer on November 3, 2015 and that the proposed plans have not yet been 

revised.  Mr. DiMeo submitted and reviewed his responses to the Town Engineer’s comments.  He stated that the final 

revised plans will be submitted to the Town Engineer.   

Mr. Mike Iezzi, Intervener, 9 Monroe Street, addressed the Commission and stated that he has wetland concerns and 

other serious concerns that go beyond the Inland Wetlands Commission.  He referred to the Town Engineer’s 

comments of November 2, 2015 which addresses storm water runoff from Monroe Street.  Part of the infiltration 

system will sit in rock.  It will not be effective and there will be possible impact to the wetlands.  The encroachment 

line on the bottom is 10 feet and if it goes beyond it will encroach into the wetlands or the buffer.  Mr. Iezzi questioned 

the water that could go down Highland Avenue and into the watershed.  He feels that the RWA and Health Department 

should review this and comment on it.  Mr. Iezzi asked that this application be tabled so that he can retain an 

engineering firm to review the information submitted and receive recommendations.   

Ms. Belinda Pappacoda, Intervener, 3 Monroe Street, addressed the Commission and referred to item 11 of the Town 

Engineer’s comments dated November 2, 2015.  She said that the basements appear to be placed in an area that will 

require blasting.  Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, stated that the applicant had stated that the houses would be 

placed slab on grade and there would be no blasting done.   



4 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Ms. Sylvia Mitchell, Intervener, 50 Forest Street, addressed the Commission and stated that she did not receive a copy 

of Mr. DiMeo’s responses to the Town Engineer’s comments and would like to read them so that she can address 

them.  She asked how many manholes there will be and where they will be located.  Ms. Mitchell questioned the 

driveways that go from Monroe Street and the possibility of the impervious surface.  She is concerned how it will be 

handled as it goes towards the wetlands.  Ms. Mitchell referred to the filtration system and asked what the capacity will 

be, how the filtration be handled, where it will emit from the system, how deep is the system and what type of material 

will be used.  Ms. Mitchell said that the test done was in an area with a lot of rock ledge.  She asked where the 

drainage will go from the two properties.  She also asked if lawns are planted and chemicals are used, how the runoff 

will affect the wetlands and watershed.   Ms. Mitchell said that the properties are close to the encroachment line and if 

chemicals are used it could turn the wetlands and watercourse into an open sewer. Mr. DiMeo stated that test pits were 

done at the ledge where the retention system is proposed.  He explained that 4 test pits and 3 deep tests were done.  

The proposed location will change based on the Town Engineer’s comments.  The proposed area was considered the 

best because it was the deepest area before ledge was hit.  The locations proposed were chosen to minimize the impact 

to the wetlands.  All the properties are located within the wetland review area.  Mr. DiMeo stated that the lots are 

approved building lots.  The application was submitted in July and he does not want the application to be tabled.   

Mr. DiMeo reviewed the proposed manholes and stated that additional manholes can be added if necessary.  He noted 

that all the driveways will be curved and stated that there will be catch basins at the bottom of them. Mr. DiMeo 

reviewed the proposed Stormwater Management Plan.   

Mr. Iezzi asked if the infiltration system will be moved and if so, will it hit shale or bedrock.  He stated that his 

understanding is that it will hit bedrock and this will make the infiltration system ineffective.  Mr. Iezzi stated that the 

flow of water will not be stopped.  He reviewed the location of his property which gets water that puddles.  Mr. Iezzi 

reviewed Ms. Pappagoda’s property and stated that she gets water on it and the water will work its way down to the 

wetlands Mr. Iezzi would like to get a professional opinion because once the work is done and the wetlands are 

affected it cannot be undone.   He requested that the application be tabled to allow further review of the proposed plan.   

Ms. Mitchell questioned if the amount of water will be the same as it currently is going down to the wetlands.  She 

asked what the grade is from the top of Monroe Street down the Highland Avenue driveway and also the same on 

Edgewood Avenue where the driveway will turn.  She has experienced how fast water can travel and it is at less than 

the proposed grade.  Ms. Mitchell stated that she has stood in her driveway with water up to her ankles.  She is 

concerned that the storage system will not be able to handle the amount of water that will come down from Monroe 

Street at a high rate of speed.   

Ms. Mitchell feels it is appropriate to table the application to allow time to review the response to the Town Engineer’s 

comments.  She did not see a copy of Mr. DiMeo’s responses to the Town Engineer’s comments and would like to see 

the revisions made to the proposed plan for the infiltration system. Ms. Mitchell feels that there will be a significant 

encroachment into the existing waterways and that additional information addressing the issues is needed.   

Ms. Pappagoda stated that she agrees with the concerns and comments made by Ms. Mitchell and Mr. Iezzi.  She stated 

that there have been problems with water in hers and Mr. Iezzi’s backyards.   

Mr. DiMeo stated that the Town Engineer’s comments recommended that the proposed detention system be moved 

into the location where the test pits had been performed.  The ledge underneath the system will meet the required 

depths.  The system should not fail and meets the required guidelines set by the State requirements. The driveways are 

at 11 percent grade for the majority of the length of the driveway.  The Town Engineer did not raise an issue with 

regards to capturing the fast moving water.  The houses on Monroe Street are upgradient to the proposed sites and have 

had issues in the past with water.  The proposed grading will make sure that water will not pool on the proposed lots.   



5 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Mr. Shadle asked when the final location for the filtration chambers will be determined.  Mr. DiMeo stated that he 

feels it should be determined by the end of the week.  Mr. Shadle referred to Sheet 3 (Soil Erosion Plan) and noted that 

the bottom of the storage tank will be at 118.5.  He asked at what depth was the ledge hit.  Mr. DiMeo believes that 

ledge was hit at five feet and was test pit number one.  Mr. Shadle asked what the elevation is for the garage without 

the foundation.  Mr. DiMeo replied the garage elevation for lot one is 117.5 and for lot two it is 119.  The elevation for 

lot two with the grading and foundation will be approximately at approximately 119 and for lot one it will be 

approximately 117.   

Mr. Shadle asked if there will be a change in the grading plan.  Mr. DiMeo replied that it will change slightly.  It will 

be minor changes in the front and it will help in the back as it approaches the wetlands.  

Mr. Stone made the motion that the application be tabled because the applicant’s engineer has indicated that he 

anticipates submitting revised plans.  Mr. Stone said the elements proposed to be changed have not been filed.    

Mr. Milazzo stated that the Town Engineer’s comments made on November 2, 2015 call for changes to the plans.  It 

appears that the applicant does not know where the system will be or what the grading will be.  Mr. Milazzo stated that 

as the proposed plan exists he would be unable to approve it.  

Mr. Milazzo seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   

Mr. DiMeo asked how long the IWC has from the date of submittal to make a decision.  Mr. Lee explained wetland 

applications are not subject to an automatic approval.  If the Commission exceeds the time limit the applicant can file 

an application with the DEEP.  Mr. Lee asked Mr. DiMeo if he intends to file an application with the DEEP.  Mr. Lee 

stated that if this is the intention then he would recommend that the Commission make a decision this evening.   

Mr. Milazzo stated that he feels the application is incomplete and there has not been enough information as presented 

to approve the application and it would need to be denied based on what has been presented.  Mr. DiMeo said that the 

comments received have not been in a timely manner and not left time to revise the plans.   

Mr. Kops stated that the revised plans have a drawing date of October 29, 2015 and Mr. Brinton replied on November 

2, 2015.  This is why Mr. DiMeo has not had time to reply to the comments and the Town Engineer is not at fault.  

There are concerns about the design that need to be addressed.   

Ms. Lakin stated that some of the comments received are not substantial.  Mr. DiMeo agreed that there were only a few 

that were significant.  

Mr. Lee stated that this is the last meeting that the Commission can hear this application without a waiver from the 

applicant to continue the meeting until December 2, 2015 and a waiver of the right to go to the DEEP with an 

application.  Mr. Lee asked Mr. DiMeo if he would like the Commission to take action on the application or continue it 

until December 2, 2015.  Mr. DiMeo stated that he grants the extension and the waiver to table the application.   

Ms. Lakin stated that this application is tabled until the December 2, 2015 meeting.   

      c.  15-1213  406 Ives Street-construct a single-family house 

                                      Anthony Zammataro, Golden Properties, LLC, Applicant   
 

Mr. Michael Harkin, Civil Engineer, addressed the Commission and stated that at the last meeting he was tasked with 

having a soil scientist do a wetland assessment for wetland flags 1 through 5.  Also, to create a mitigation area at the 
rear of the property, this would include a planting plan.  Mr. Harkin reviewed the wetland assessment that was 

completed and the report that was submitted.   

 



6 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Mr. Harkin reviewed the proposed planting plan.  He stated that the revised plans address the Town Engineer’s 

comments of November 2, 2015.  Mr. Harkin reviewed the Town Engineer’s comments and the changes that were 
made to the proposed plans to address them.   

 

Mr. Robert Cole, 402 Ives Street, Intervener, addressed the Commission and stated that he engaged a soil scientist to 

do an in depth professional evaluation on the possible impacts the proposed driveway and house will have on the area.  
He asked that the soil scientist be allowed to present the findings.   

 

Ms. Lakin stated that the soil scientist could present his findings.  She said that she received his report, but did not 
have time to review it.   

 

Mr. George Logan, Soil Scientist, submitted a copy of his resume and a copy of his findings to the clerk.  Mr. Logan 
summarized his report which found that the development of the lot for a single family house shall result in: 1) High 

Risk of Erosion and Sedimentation during construction (short-term impacts). 2) Erosion and Sedimentation following 

construction (long-term impacts). 3) Degradation of water quality (long-term impacts). 4) Diminution of wetland 

habitat and wetland functions and values (long-term impacts).  
 

Mr. Logan also found that the application is deficient in the following: 1) Description and inventory of regulated 

resources, both on-site and immediately off-site, and the functions and values they provide. 2) Proper consideration of 
feasible and prudent alternatives with regards to significant direct and indirect wetland impacts. 3) Presentation of a 

robust mitigation plan following the hierarchical sequence of avoidance, minimization, compensatory mitigation. 4) 

Consideration of sufficient wetland/riparian buffers to promote the long-term protection of the site’s perennial stream.   
 

Mr. Logan submitted and reviewed The Scientific Basis For Wetland & Watercourse Buffer Zones.   

 

Mr. Logan concluded that the proposed plan will result in significant, and adverse, short-term and long-term impacts to 
regulated wetlands and water courses.  There is a reasonable likelihood that the proposed plan will unreasonably 

pollute and impair regulated areas.  As an alternative to the current proposal the applicant should revise the proposed 

plan to include: A smaller house or septic, provide an alternative to filling of the wetland for the driveway, provide 
stormwater quality and water quantity mitigation for impervious surfaces and sloping lawn areas, provide appropriate 

wetland habitat restoration/enhancement which includes removal of invasive plant species.   

 

Mr. Stone left the meeting at 8:48 p.m. 
 

Dr. Thomas Ullrich, 410 Ives Street, Intervener, addressed the Commission and stated that there is room for mitigation.  

He is in favor of giving a right of way on his other driveway.  Dr. Ullrich stated that he has spoken with the applicant 
and that there is room for negotiation.  

 

Mr. Harkin stated that the report from Mr. Logan’s report was received tonight.  He enjoys receiving other 
professionals input because it might address small items that were missed and helps to make for a better project.  Mr. 

Harkin stated that the lot was approved by the Town as part of a subdivision.  He reviewed the locations of the 

driveways for lots 11, 12 and 13.  Mr. Logan said that the original subdivision called for three 15 foot wide driveways 

together.     The former owner of lot 12 and 13 was Mr. Zammataro.  The new owner combined the lots.  Prior to the 
lots being combined the wetlands area was proposed to be wiped out. The driveway for lot 10 went through the center 

of the wetlands.  Feasible and prudent alternatives were discussed at the previous meeting.  Mr. Harkin stated that there 

will be a buffer area created so that there is no further encroachment into the wetlands.   
 

Mr. Harkin reviewed the proposed house which was approved by QVHD for the septic system.  He reviewed the test 

pits that were done on the site.  Mr. Harkin reviewed the stormwater management plan.  He noted that the drainage 
pattern will not be changed from the original plans for the site.   

Mr. Harkin reviewed feasible and prudent alternatives and noted that they are cost prohibitive.   Permission from the 

neighbor was granted to cross the wetlands and then access the existing driveway.  Mr. Harkin submitted a revised Site 

Development Plan that includes an easement between the owners of lot 11 and lot 13.   



7 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

 

Mr. Harkin stated that the proposed house and driveway is designed for the first inch of water runoff.  He reviewed the 
Erosion Control Plans.  Mr. Harkin reviewed the RWA comments which stated that the Sediment & Erosion Control 

plan appears to be adequate.  He noted that the house being proposed is smaller than the originally proposed house for 

this site.   

 
Mr. Liston stated that the Commission received the packet from the intervener and a revised plan from the applicant at 

tonight’s meeting.  He feels that it is prudent that the members take the time to review the material before making a 

determination.  
 

Ms. Liston made the motion to table this application until the December 2, 2015 meeting.  Mr. Milazzo seconded the 

motion.   

 

Ms. Jensen asked if the applicant was planning on having his soil scientist make further comments with regards to the 

material that was submitted at this meeting.  Mr. Harkin stated that he will need to speak with Mr. Snarski.  A statement 

was made that Mr. Snarski was not on the site for a wetlands assessment.  However, Mr. Snarski’s letter was dated 
October 16, 2016, so he was at the site.  Mr. Harkin referred to the mitigation area and the location was requested by 

the Commission.  The mitigation area cannot be placed outside the wetlands because of the steep slope and Mr. Snarski 

had asked that there be additional plantings in the area.   
 

Mr. Anthony Zammataro, Applicant, stated that the new interveners’ letter had only been received within hours before 

the meeting.  The soil scientist’s report was only received one hour before the meeting.  Mr. Zammataro feels that 
because of the interveners’ late submittals he did not have the opportunity to ask his soil scientist to attend the meeting.  

He stated that everything the Commission has asked him to do has been done in a timely manner.  Mr. Zammataro 

reviewed the history of the lots that he owns and had owned.  He noted that the proposed lot is an approved building 

lot and he had met with the Planning Staff to determine what needed to be done to be able to develop it.   Mr. 
Zammataro said that his intention was not to build on the lot but to sell it.  He reviewed what has been done to date that 

would allow him to sell the property.  The design changes on the revised plan are minimal.  Mr. Zammataro asked that 

the application not be tabled again and that the Commission take the time to review the revised plan.  
 

Mr. Cole stated that his property (lot 9) does not show on the revised plans or address his concerns about the wetlands.  

The wetland area was identified by his consulting soil scientist.  He stated that no one has addressed the impacts that 

could occur on the wetlands located in the front of his property if a driveway is put in.   
 

Mr. Zammataro stated that he lived in his house for 27 years and he remembers sledding down into the wetlands and 

was only stopped by a mafia block on lot 10.  If there was any wildlife in the area his daughter would have found it.  It 
is a small wetland area and there was never any water or erosion issues on his property or surrounding properties.   

 

Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney stated that the applicant must grant an extension before the application can be 
tabled until the December 2, 2015.  

 

Ms. Lakin asked Mr. Zammataro if he would grant a 30 day extension.  Mr. Zammataro replied yes.  Mr. Harkin stated 

that he may not be able to attend the December 2, 2015 meeting and asked that all comments be submitted in a timely 
manner to allow him time to review them and make any necessary changes.   

 

Ms. Lakin stated that the Commission would like all submissions made at least one week prior to the December 2, 
2015 meeting.   

 

Ms. Lakin called for a vote to the motion to table this item until the December 2, 2015 meeting.   
 

The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Files available for review in the Planning Office 



8 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

 

II.  Other Business 
 

      1.    Notices-of-Violation, Cease & Desist & Restore Orders, Notices-to-Appear   

            

                     a.     N.O.V.  64 Rocky Top Road – clearing of trees & removal of vegetation                        
                     b.     N.O.V.  Lot 10-Benham Hill Estates (aka 0 Benham Hill Place)  

                      Failure to repair & maintain stormwater detention basin 

 
All Notices-of-Violation remain tabled. 

   

           2.    Review Site Inspection Schedule   
 

The Commission discussed possible dates to schedule a site inspection for 2040 Dixwell Avenue.  Mr. Vocelli will 

schedule the site inspection for Sunday, November 8, 2015.   

 

           3.    Old/New Business   
 

Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, reported on a 76 page court decision for 170 Birchwood Drive.  The court has 
ordered the Commission to approve the 2013 application with reasonable conditions.   

 

Ms. Lakin asked the Commission to review the IW Brochure and let her know of any changes they would like made to 
it.   

 

          4.    Review of October 7, 2015 Meeting Minutes  
 
Ms. Kallenbach asked that the minutes be amended to reflect that Ms. Lakin thanked her for the site inspection report 

she had done.  Ms. Shellard, Clerk of the Commission stated that “AGENDA” should be changed to “MINUTES”.   

 

Ms. Kallenbach made the motion to approve the minutes as amended.  Mr. Liston seconded the motion.  Ms. 

Kallenbach, Mr. Liston, Ms. Jensen, Mr. Shadle and Mr. Stone voted in favor of the motion.  Mr. Milazzo abstained.  

Therefore the motion passed 5-0-1.   

 

           5.    Adjournment 

 

A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Milazzo and seconded by Mr. Shadle.  It passed with no dissenting votes.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:27 p.m.   

    

Submitted by:   ______________________________________      

                           Stacy Shellard-Clerk of the Commission                 


